
 

Walworth Community Council 
Planning 

 
Tuesday 15 March 2011 

7.00 pm 
InSpire at St Peter's, Liverpool Grove, London, SE17 2HH 

 
Membership 
 

 

Councillor Martin Seaton (Chair) 
Councillor Neil Coyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Catherine Bowman 
Councillor Patrick Diamond 
Councillor Dan Garfield 
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE 
Councillor Darren Merrill 
Councillor Abdul Mohamed 
Councillor Helen Morrissey 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: Monday 7 March 2011 
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item 
No. 

Title  

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interest or dispensation and the nature 
of that interest or dispensation which they may have in any of the items 
under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 
 

 

5. MINUTES (Pages 3 - 5) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 9 
February 2011. 
 

 

6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL ITEMS (Pages 6 - 10) 
 

 

6.1. DRISCOLL HOUSE, 172 NEW KENT ROAD, LONDON, SE1 
4YT (Pages 11 - 27) 

 

 

 
Date:  Monday 7 March 2011 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Alexa Coates, Principal Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 
7525 7385 or email: alexa.coates@southwark.gov.uk 
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7385.  
 
 

 



Walworth Community Council

Language Needs
If you would like information on the Community Councils translated into your
language please telephone 020 7525 7385 or visit the officers at 160 Tooley
Street, London SE1 2TZ

Spanish:

Necesidades de Idioma
Si usted desea información sobre los Municipios de la Comunidad traducida a
su idioma por favor llame al 020 7525 7385 o visite a los oficiales de 160 Tooley
Street, Londres SE1 2TZ

Somali:

U-Baahnaanshaha Luqadda
Haddii aad u baahan tahay macluumaadka ku saabsan Guddiyada Beelaha oo
lagu tarjumay luqaddaada fadlan soo wac khadka taleefoonka 020 7525 7385
ama booqasho ugu tag hawlwadeennada ku sugan 160 Tooley Street, London
SE1 2TZ

French:

Besoins de Langue
Si vous désirez obtenir des renseignements sur les Community Councils traduits
dans votre langue, veuillez appeler le 020 7525 7385 ou allez voir nos agents à
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Bengali:

fvlvi cÖ‡qvRb

Avcwb hw` wb‡Ri fvlvq KwgDwbwU KvDwÝj m¤ú‡K© Z_¨ †c‡Z Pvb Zvn‡j 020 7525 7385 b¤̂‡i
†dvb Ki“b A_ev 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ wVKvbvq wM‡q Awdmvi‡`i mv‡_ †`Lv

Ki“b|

Yoruba:

Awon Kosemani Fun Ede
Bi o ba nfe àlàyé kíkún l’ori awon Ìgbìmò ti Àwùjo ti a yi pada si ede abínibí re,

ojúlé 160 Tooley Street , London SE1 2TZ .

Agenda Annex
1



Igbo:

Asusu
I choo imata gbasara Council na asusu gi ikpoo ha n’okara igwe 020 7525 7385
ma obu igaa hu ndi oru ha na 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Krio:

Na oose language you want
If you lek for sabi all tin but Community Council na you yone language, do ya
telephone 020 7525 7385 or you kin go talk to dee officesr dem na 160 Tooley
Treet, London SE1 2TZ.

Twi:

Kasaa ohohia,
se wopese wo hu nsem fa Community Councils ho a, sesa saakasa yie ko wo
kuro kasa mu. wo be tumi afre saa ahoma torofo yie 020 7525 7385 anase ko sra
inpanyinfo wo 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2Tz.

2



1 
 
 

Walworth Community Council - Wednesday 9 February 2011 
 

 
 
 
 

WALWORTH COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
- Planning - 

 
MINUTES of the Walworth Community Council held on Wednesday 9 February 2011 
at 7.00 pm at InSpire at St Peter's, Liverpool Grove, London, SE17 2HH  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Martin Seaton (Chair) 

Councillor Neil Coyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Catherine Bowman 
Councillor Patrick Diamond 
Councillor Dan Garfield 
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE 
Councillor Darren Merrill 
Councillor Helen Morrissey 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Gary Rice, Head of Development Management 
Rob Bristow, Group Manager West Team 
Suzan Yildiz, Senior Planning Lawyer 
Alexa Coates, Principal Constitutional Officer 
 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 
 

 

 The Chair welcomed councillors, members of the public and officers to the meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 Apologies were received from Cllr Mohamed. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members declared interests regarding the following agenda items 
 
Agenda Item 6.2 292 Walworth Road, London, SE17 2TE. 
 
Councillor Catherine Bowman, Personal, as Cllr Bowman had spoken against the 
application when it was originally considered by the community council and so did not take 

Agenda Item 5
3



2 
 
 

Walworth Community Council - Wednesday 9 February 2011 
 

part in the determination of the item. 
 
Councillor Patrick Diamond, Personal, as Cllr Diamond had spoken against the application 
when it was originally considered by the community council and so did not take part in the 
determination of the item. 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

 The chair accepted the late and urgent report for item 6.2 292 Walworth Road, London 
SE17 2TE for the reasons set out in the report. 
 

5. MINUTES 
 

 

 Resolved 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 November be agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the chair subject to the amendment to the resolution on item 6.2 that the further 
consultation and research be carried out no later than January 2011. 
 

6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL ITEMS 
 

 

6.1 DRAPER HOUSE, ELEPHANT AND CASTLE, LONDON, SE1 6SX  
 

 The planning officer presented the application drawing members’ attention to the 
addendum report which had been circulated. 
 
Members asked questions of the planning officer. 
 
The applicant spoke for the application. 
 
Members asked questions of the applicant. 
 
Members discussed the application 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the application is approved subject to the conditions set out in the report and 
addendum report. 
 

6.2 292 WALWORTH ROAD, LONDON, SE17 2TE  
 

 The planning officer presented the report. 
 
Members asked questions of the planning and legal officers. 
 
Members discussed the report. 
 

4



3 
 
 

Walworth Community Council - Wednesday 9 February 2011 
 

Resolved: 
 
That the appeal against non-determination is contested by the Council on the following 
grounds: 
 

1. The proposal, due to the proximity of the building at ground floor to the 
neighbouring former police station, will create an undue sense of enclosure which 
will be overbearing and create an adverse impact on outlook to the residential 
properties in this neighbouring building, harmful to their residential amenities and 
quality of life, thereby contrary to Policies 3.1 `Environmental Effects' and 3.2 
`Protection of Amenity' of the Southwark Plan (2007) 

 
2. Given the position of this site on an historic route, the fact that it has remained 

undeveloped, and its immediate proximity to the Walworth Village Archaeological 
Priority Zone, and the high potential for this development to impact on any 
archaeological remains; the lack of an archaeological evaluation prior to 
submission of the application prevents adequate consideration of this matter.  In 
the absence of which the Council cannot conclude that the proposal will not give 
rise to harm to archaeological remains and heritage assets, contrary to Policy 3.19 
`Archaeology' of the Southwark Plan (2007) and PPS5 `Planning for the Historic 
Environment' 2010. 

 

 Meeting ended at 10.10 pm 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 

5



 

 

 
 

 

Item No.  
6. 

Classification: 
Open  

Date: 
15 March 2011 

Meeting Name: 
Walworth Community Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Development Management 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All within the Walworth community council area 

From: 
 

Deputy Chief Executive 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the determination of planning applications, or formal observations and 

comments, the instigation of enforcement action and the receipt of the reports 
included in the attached items be considered. 

 
2. That the decisions made on the planning applications be subject to the conditions 

and/or made for the reasons set out in the attached reports unless otherwise 
stated. 

 
3. That where reasons for decisions or conditions are not included or not as included 

in the reports relating to an individual item, they be clearly specified. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
4 The council’s powers to consider planning business are detailed in Article 8 

which describes the role and functions of the planning committee and Article 10 
which describes the role and functions of community councils.  These were 
agreed by the constitutional meeting of the council on 23 May 2007 and 
amended on 30 January 2008. The matters reserved to the planning committee 
and community councils Exercising Planning Functions are described in part 3F 
of the Southwark council constitution. These functions were delegated to the 
planning committee. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
5. In respect of the attached planning committee items members are asked, where 

appropriate - 
 
6. To determine those applications in respect of site(s) within the borough, subject 

where applicable, to the consent of the First Secretary of State and any directions 
made by the Mayor of London. 

 
7. To give observations on applications in respect of which the council is not the 

planning authority in planning matters but which relate to site(s) within the 
borough, or where the site(s) is outside the borough but may affect the amenity of 
residents within the borough. 

 

Agenda Item 6
6



 

 

 
 

 

8. To receive for information any reports on the previous determination of 
applications, current activities on site, or other information relating to specific 
planning applications requested by members. 

 
9. Each of the following items are preceded by a map showing the location of the 

land/property to which the report relates.  Following the report, there is a draft 
decision notice detailing the officer's recommendation indicating approval or 
refusal.  Where a refusal is recommended the draft decision notice will detail the 
reasons for such refusal.   

 
10. Applicants have the right to appeal to the First Secretary of State against a refusal 

of planning permission and against any condition imposed as part of permission.  
If the appeal is dealt with by public inquiry then fees may be incurred through 
employing Counsel to present the council's case.   

 
11. The sanctioning of enforcement action can also involve costs such as process 

serving, court costs and of legal representation. 
 
12. Where either party is felt to have acted unreasonably in an appeal involving a 

public inquiry or informal hearing the inspector can make an award of costs 
against the offending party. 

 
13. All legal/Counsel fees and costs as well as awards of costs against the council are 

borne by the regeneration and neighbourhood’s budget. 
 
Community Impact Statement 
 
14         Community Impact considerations are contained within each item. 
 

 SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 

 Strategic Director of Communities, Law & Governance 
 
15. A resolution to grant planning permission shall mean that the development & 

building control manager is authorised to grant planning permission.  The 
resolution does not itself constitute the permission and only the formal document 
authorised by the committee and issued under the signature of the development & 
building control manager shall constitute a planning permission.  Any additional 
conditions required by the committee will be recorded in the minutes and the final 
planning permission issued will reflect the requirements of the planning 
committee.  

 
16. A resolution to grant planning permission subject to legal agreement shall mean 

that the development & building control manager is authorised to issue a 
planning permission subject to the applicant and any other necessary party 
entering into a written agreement in a form of words prepared by the strategic 
director of legal and democratic services, and which is satisfactory to the 
development & building control manager.  Developers meet the council's legal 
costs of such agreements.  Such an agreement shall be entered into under 
section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or under another 

7



 

 

 
 

 

appropriate enactment as shall be determined by the strategic director of legal 
& democratic services.  The planning permission will not be issued unless such 
an agreement is completed. 

 
17. Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended requires 

the council to have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as 
material to the application, and to any other material considerations when 
dealing with applications for planning permission.  Section 38(6) of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides that where, in making any 
determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the development 
plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 

18. The development plan is currently the Southwark Plan (UDP) 2007 adopted by 
the council in July 2007 and the London Plan (consolidated with alterations 
since 2004) published in February 2008.  The enlarged definition of 
“development plan” arises from s38(2) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.  Where there is any conflict with any policy contained in the 
development plan, the conflict must be resolved in favour of the policy which is 
contained in the last document to be adopted, approved or published, as the 
case may be (s38(5) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).   

19. Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended 
introduced the concept of planning obligations.  Planning obligations may take 
the form of planning agreements or unilateral undertakings and may be entered 
into by any person who has an interest in land in the area of a local planning 
authority.  Planning obligations may only: 

 
I. restrict the development or use of the land; 

 
II. require operations or activities to be carried out in, on, under or over the 

land; 
 

III. require the land to be used in any specified way; or 
 

IV. require payments to be made to the local planning authority on a specified 
date or dates or periodically. 

 
 Planning obligations are enforceable by the planning authority against the person 

who gives the original obligation and/or their successor/s. 
 
20. Government policy on planning obligations is contained in the Office of the Deputy 

Prime Minister Circular 05/2005.  Provisions of legal agreements must fairly and 
reasonably relate to the provisions of the development plan and to planning 
considerations affecting the land.  The obligation must also be such as a 
reasonable planning authority, duly appreciating its statutory duties can properly 
impose, i.e. it must not be so unreasonable that no reasonable authority could 
have imposed it.  Before resolving to grant planning permission subject to a legal 
agreement members should therefore satisfy themselves that the subject matter 
of the proposed agreement will meet these tests. 

 

8



 

 

 
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Council Assembly Agenda June 27 
2007 and Council Assembly Agenda 
January 30 2008 

Constitutional Team 
Communities, Law & 
Governance  
2nd Floor 160 Tooley 
Street 
PO Box 64529  
London SE1 5LX 
 

Alexa Coates 
020 7525 7385 

Each planning committee item has a 
separate planning case file 

Council Offices, 5th Floor 
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE27 3ES 

The named case 
Officer as listed or 
Gary Rice 
020 7525 5437 

 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
  
Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 

Governance  
Report Author Nagla Stevens, Principal Planning Lawyer  

Kenny Uzodike, Constitutional Officer 
Version Final 
Dated 1 October 2010 
Key Decision No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments 

Sought 
Comments included 

Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 
Governance  

Yes Yes 

Strategic Director of Regeneration 
and Neighbourhoods 

No No 

Head of Development  Management No No 
 
 

9



 
ITEMS ON AGENDA OF THE WALWORTH CC 

on Tuesday 15 March 2011 

DRISCOLL HOUSE, 172 NEW KENT ROAD, LONDON, SE1 4YT Site 
Listed Building Consent Appl. Type 

Minor alterations and demolition to include: insertion of a new lift from basement to fourth floor level, glazing over of lightwell, 
limited demolition and remodeling of partitions, minor alterations to meet fire regulations; infilling of gaps to corridor walls and wall 
separating bedrooms following asbestos removal, minor repairs to railings, gates and elevations. 

Proposal 

10-AP-3656 Reg. No. 
TP/1120-172 TP No. 
East Walworth Ward 
Tracy Chapman Officer 

GRANT PERMISSION Recommendation Item 6 /1 

 

10



S
ca

le
 1

/1
76

2

D
at

e 
23

/2
/2

01
1

D
R

IS
C

O
L

L
 H

S
E

, 1
72

 N
E

W
 K

E
N

T
 R

O
A

D
, L

O
N

D
O

N
, S

E
1 

4Y
T

A
 D

E
M

E
T

R
IO

U
©

 C
ro

w
n 

co
py

rig
ht

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
 (

(0
)1

00
01

92
52

) 
20

09

O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y

Agenda Item 6.1
11



Item No.  
 
         6.1 
 
  

Classification:   
 
OPEN 
 

Date: 
 
15 March 2011 
 

Meeting Name:  
 
Walworth Community Council 

Report title:  
 
 

Development Management planning application:   
Application 10-AP-3656 for: Listed Building Consent 
 
Address:  
DRISCOLL HOUSE, 172 NEW KENT ROAD, LONDON, SE1 4YT 
 
Proposal:  
Minor alterations and demolition to include: insertion of a new lift from 
basement to fourth floor level, glazing over of lightwell, limited demolition 
and remodelling of partitions, minor alterations to meet fire regulations; 
infilling of gaps to corridor walls and wall separating bedrooms following 
asbestos removal, minor repairs to railings, gates and elevations. 
 

Ward(s) or  
groups  
affected:  

East Walworth 

From:  Head of Development Management 
 

Application Start Date  04/01/2011 Application Expiry Date  28/02/2011 
 
 

 PURPOSE 
1 To consider the above Listed Building Consent application which is for Community 

Council consideration, due to the number of objections received. 
 
 

 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2 To recommend a grant of Listed Building Consent subject to conditions. 
 
 

 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

 Site location and description 
 

3 The application site, Driscoll House, is a 6-storey building located on the south side of 
New Kent Road, and is listed Grade II.  Driscoll House was built in 1913 by architects 
Joseph and Smithem, and is an imposing example of institutional Baroque style of the 
early 20th century. It was formerly the Ada Lewis Home for women. The U-shaped 
floor plan is oriented perpendicularly, such that its entrance and principle facade faces 
the internal access road of the neighbouring Grade II listed terraces to the west, rather 
than New Kent Road.  The layout of the building was influenced by social housing 
plans of the time, with communal areas on the lower floors and residential 
accommodation above. 
 

4 A characteristic of the building is that the levels inside are not consistent.  The main 
entrance is on the ground floor, a staircase leads down to the basement which 
contains the kitchen, dining room, laundry and entrance to the courtyard.  Half a flight 
leads up to the lower ground floor, which contains the common, reading and sewing 
rooms, and the staff bedrooms.  The southern-most part of the staircase has another 
half-flight up to the upper ground floor, which contains more bedrooms. There is no 
equivalent upper ground floor on the northern wing of the building, as the common, 
reading and sewing rooms all have double height ceilings.  The levels on the first to 

12



fourth floors are more stabilised, but they are similar in layout, containing small 
bedrooms arranged around corridors running through the heart of the building.   
 

 Details of proposal 
 

5 The building was used as the ‘Ada Lewis Women’s Lodging House’ until 1968, when it 
was sold to Terence Driscoll and renamed Driscoll House. The building was then run 
as a cheap hostel for foreign travellers and students.  An Established Use Certificate 
was granted on 05/10/1976 for the use of the building as a ‘Hostel’.  Driscoll House 
continued in use as a hostel until the death of Mr Driscoll. The building was sold in 
2010 and is currently vacant.   
 

6 The Listed Building Consent granted on 24/11/2006 (LBS Reg: 06-AP-1472) expired 
in November 2009.  During the summer of 2010 works commenced on Driscoll House.  
Following an investigation (LBS Reg: 10-EN-0327) by the Council, the works ceased.  
Not all the works undertaken required Listed Building Consent and others were in 
accordance with the previous permission.  However since the consent had lapsed and 
there had been both a national (Planning Policy Statement 5 - Planning for the Historic 
Environment) and local (Southwark Plan 2007) change in planning policy since the 
previous permission, the owners were invited to make a fresh application. 
 

7 The application under consideration is for: internal alterations and demolition to 
include: insertion of a new lift from basement to fourth floor level, glazing over of 
lightwell, demolition and remodelling of partitions, minor alterations to meet fire 
regulations; infilling of gaps to corridor walls and wall separating bedrooms following 
asbestos removal, minor repairs to railings, gates and elevations.  The purpose of the 
application is to modernise the building for local and foreign visitors and continue its 
use as a hostel.    A  Design and Access Statement, Tree Survey/Arboricultural 
Statement, Listed Building Heritage Statement, Schedule of Works, and drawing no’s 
051_(PL)100 Rev.A, 051_(PL) 01 Rev.A, 051_(PL)02 Rev.A, 051_(PL)03 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)04 Rev.A, 051_(PL)10 Rev.A, 051_(PL)11 Rev.A, 051_(PL)12 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)13 Rev.A, 051_(PL)14 Rev.A, 051_(PL)15 Rev.A, 051_(PL)16 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)21 Rev.A, 051_(PL)22 Rev.A, 051_(PL)23 Rev.A, 051_(PL)24 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)50 Rev.A, 051_(PL)51 Rev.A, 051_(PL) 52  Rev.A, have been provided in 
support of the application. 
 

 Planning history 
 

8 • 05-AP-1817- Planning permission was refused on 19/12/2005 for 
"redevelopment of existing hotel for residential development for 100% 
affordable housing scheme, incorporating 91 units (17x1 bed, 45x2 bed, 25x3 
bed, and 4x4 bed) This decision was subsequently appealed against, but the 
appeal was then withdrawn. 

 
• 06-AP-1472 – Listed Building Consent was granted in 24/11/2006 for minor 

alterations, demolition to internal walls new glazed roof light (basement) new 
entrance and fire exit doors. 

 
 Planning history of adjoining sites 

 
9 No recent relevant planning history. 
  
 KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 Summary of main issues 

 
10 The main issues to be considered in respect of this application are: 

 
a)   the acceptability of the works in terms of preserving the fabric of the Grade II listed 
building. 

13



  
 Planning policy 

 
11 Southwark Plan 2007 (July) 

 
 Policy 3.15 Conservation and the Historic Environment 

Policy 3.17 Listed Buildings 
Policy 3.18 Setting of listed buildings, conservation areas and world heritage sites 

  
12 London Plan 2008 consolidated with alterations since 2004 

Policy 4B.11 - London's Built Heritage 
Policy 4B.12 - Heritage Conservation 

  
 Core Strategy 

 
13 Southwark’s Core Strategy was considered by an independent Inspector during an 

Examination in Public held in July 2010.   The Inspector has issued his binding report 
and deemed the Core Strategy to be sound. His report was received on 28 January 
2011 and it is likely that the Southwark will adopt the Core Strategy.    
 

14 Now the Inspector’s binding report has been received, the Core Strategy, together 
with the suggested changes by the Inspector carries considerable weight.  In the 
period before the Core Strategy is formally adopted, whilst the Southwark Plan 
remains the relevant statutory development plan, where the Core Strategy suggests a 
different approach when determining a planning application, the Core Strategy is a 
significant material consideration that should be taken into account. 
 

15 Strategic Policy 12 - Design and conservation 
  
16 Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) and Planning Policy Statements (PPS) 

PPS 5 Planning for the Historic Environment 
  
 Principle of development  

 
17 The proposal seeks to restore, refurbish and modernise this vacant grade II listed 

building.  The scheme is comparable to that granted Listed Building Consent in 
November 2006 (LBS Reg: 06-AP-1472). 

  
 Plan Form 

 
18 We are advised in PPS 5 'Planning for the Historic Environment: Historic Environment 

Planning Practice Guide' (paragraph 182) 
‘The plan form of a building is frequently one of its most important characteristics and 
internal partitions, staircases (whether decorated or plain, principal or secondary) and 
other features are likely to form part of its significance.  Indeed they may be its most 
significant feature.  Proposal to remove or modify internal arrangements , including the 
insertion of new opening or extension underground, will be subject to the same 
considerations of impact on significance (particularly architectural interest as external 
visible alterations).'  One of the main considerations of the case is the compliance of 
the proposal with the paragraph 182 of the PPS 5 Practice Guidance. 
 

19 The plan form of Driscoll House has remained relatively unaltered since construction 
in 1913.  Whilst over time, cooking and washing areas have been modernised the only 
other area of change has been with the bedrooms on the upper floors. Originally there 
were 46 cubicles and 6 double sized bedrooms on each of the four upper floors. Each 
window was split between two cubicles with the central partition having gaps where it 
met the floor and ceiling.  The small cubicles were unpopular and eventually the 
partitions where removed and the spaces converted into double sized bedrooms. 
 

20 The previous consent approved the wholesale removal of the partitions and 

14



reconfiguration of the bedrooms and corridors on the four upper floors.  The partitions 
contained asbestos and therefore could not be retained.  It should be noted that 
Driscoll House is of architectural interest because of its relatively early use of 
reinforced concrete, using the Mouchel-Hennebique system.  Whilst the majority of the 
bedroom partitions have been removed as part of the asbestos removal and prior to 
consent being granted, this has not had a structural impact on the listed building.  It 
should be noted that the principal of the removal of these partitions was established 
with the previous consent (06-AP-1472).  It is considered that the layout on the upper 
floors is more sensitive than that previously approved. The new partitions will also 
comply with current Building Regulations in terms of: sound insulation and fire 
protection. The buildings communal facilities have been modernised throughout the 
history of the building and refurbishment of the toilet and washroom facilities and the 
introduction of en-suites is a considered a continuation of this.  The new sanitary-ware 
will connect into existing runs, and it is suggested that a condition be attached for no 
new pipework, vents or flues on the exterior of the building.  
 

21 Listed buildings do not have an exemption from the Fire Regulations and in order for 
compliance a fire lobby is proposed off the central staircase on the upper four floors.  
In addition a partition and fire door will be inserted at the entrance of both the north 
and south wings, as indicated on drawing no. 051_(PL)13rev.A. We are advised in 
PPS 5 'Planning for the Historic Environment: Historic Environment Planning Practice 
Guide' (paragraph 144) ‘there are various legal requirements that buildings have to 
comply with, such as Building Regulations and the Disability Discrimination Act. 
Sometimes  
the best means of conserving a heritage asset will seem to conflict with the 
requirements of such regimes. Local planning authorities are encouraged to consider 
imaginative ways of avoiding such conflict. Where conflict is unavoidable, such 
regimes generally allow for some flexibility so that a balance can be struck.’  It is 
considered that the proposed fire lobbies, corridor partitions and fire doors to the north 
and south wings, are acceptable in view of this guidance in PPS 5. 
 

22 The mezzanine floors between the ground and first floor on the south side of the 
building were once occupied by the staff and offices. The previous consent (06-AP-
1472) had proposed the removal of existing partitions, doors and staircases, in these 
areas.  The application under consideration here is more sensitive to the historic plan 
form and seeks to retain these  important rooms, with the exception of the former 
cubicles on the south side which will be opened up to accommodate the lift and create 
a larger dormitory.  No objection is raised to the alterations proposed on these levels, 
as indicated on drawing no’s 051_(PL)11rev.A and 051_(PL)12rev.A. 
 

 Features of significance 
 

23 In the basement area works to the existing plan form (drawing no.  051_(PL)10rev.A) 
include the removal of partitions to open up spaces and create both dormitories and 
communal spaces.  The layout is comparable to that consented in 2006 (06-AP-1472) 
and no objection is raised subject to the retention and preservation of features of 
significance such as the: drying racks and bath tubs. 
 

24 The listed building retains a number of historic features internally; of particular note 
are the: bath tubs, primary staircase, kitchen servery, fireplaces, basement drying 
racks and the tiled communal rooms.  It is suggested that a condition be attached for 
details of protection during the works.  It is noted that the Schedule of Works (item 1.3) 
suggests that the bath tubs could be recycled through architectural salvage.  However, 
the baths are an important part of the historic fabric of the building and should be 
retained, and incorporated in a scheme.  Therefore a condition should be attached for 
the retention of both the bath tubs and all remain fireplaces within the building.  
 

25 It is noted that the redundant drying racks will be preserved in-situ, which is 
welcomed.  To ensure the protection of this important historic feature it is suggested 
that a condition be attached for drawn details of the method of protection, when the 

15



room is used as a modern laundry. 
 

26 Part of the works proposed seeks to sensitively restore the tiled communal rooms.  
The repairs are welcomed, subject to the approval of tile samples.  Whilst, it is noted 
that there have been neighbour objections to these significant areas being used as 
dormitories, the architect has confirmed that the beds shown on the drawings indicate 
that these areas might contain beds in the future. Listed Building Consent is not 
required for the arrangement and placement of furniture within a listed building.  
Furthermore, the number of beds and potential users of a building is beyond the remit 
of a Listed Building Consent application. 
 

 Lift 
 

27 There is currently no level access into the building, with the primary entrance 
accessed via steps. Presently there is no internal lift or stair lifts within the building.  
The proposal seeks to introduce an internal lift in the south western corner of the 
Listed Building (drawing no. 051(PL) 52rev.A).  The lift overrun will be accommodated 
behind the parapet at main roof level, and will not be visible from neighbouring 
properties or New Kent Road.  The installation of the lift will result in minor alterations 
to the plan form to accommodate the lift.  The works will necessitate in a plasterboard 
wall being constructed in front of the window in that location, on all levels.  However, 
on balance the benefit to users outweighs the loss and alterations to the fabric 
required.  Level access will be possible from the rear entrance to the building, through 
the communal area and then via the lift to all floors.  In addition a stair lift will be 
provided on the staircase between the lower and upper ground floor to enable use of 
the TV lounge. In summary it is considered that the new lift and stair-lift will not 
compromise the significance of the heritage asset and complies with guidance in 
paragraphs 45 and 144 of the PPS 5 Practice Guidance.  It is suggested that a 
condition be attached for the provision of a Method Statement and Schedule of Works 
for the creation of the openings to accommodate the new lift.   
 

 Doors 
 

28 Whilst some of the original metal internal doors remain, the majority have been 
replaced.  At the time of listing the doors to the bedroom cubicles were mainly flushed 
1970’s veneered doors.  The remaining metal doors will be retained and relocated.  
The location of these doors will have to be agreed with the fire officer, therefore it is 
suggested that a condition be attached for a schedule of existing doors, details of the 
proposed repairs and relocation.  No objection is raised to the replacement of the 
modern flushed doors and an acceptable on site sample was provided at application 
stage. 
 

29 Externally the works include the replacement of existing doors and creation of access 
to the new central covered courtyard.  These works are comparable to those previous 
consented under the 2006 scheme (06-AP-1472) and therefore no objection is raised, 
subject to approval of details. 
 

 Windows 
 

30 Part of the work under consideration is the proposed repairs to the existing windows.  
The majority of these windows are original metal casements; others are more modern 
timber windows.  Whilst the timber windows are non-original they were in place at the 
time of listing and reflect the change in fashion and materials in window design over-
time.  We are advised in PPS 5 Practice Guide paragraph 152, that: doors and 
windows are frequently key to the significance of a building. Change is therefore 
advisable only where the original is beyond repair, it minimises the loss of historic 
fabric and matches the original in detail.’  No objection is raised to the repair of the 
existing windows and those units beyond repair, subject to the approval of a detailed 
window schedule, Schedule of Works and shop drawings of replacement units.  It is 
noted, that one of the neighbour consultation response received requested the 

16



replacement of these timber windows.  However since the timber windows were in 
place at the time of listing, the Council can not insist on their replacement back to a 
metal casement. 
 

 Lightwell 
 

31 The proposed new glazed roof is considered to be acceptable, as the lightweight 
structure is not considered to harm the integrity of the current lightwell at basement 
level. The proposal is comparable to that previously approved (06-AP-1472). The area 
is currently open with railings surrounding the flat roof of the basement/lower ground 
level. Upgrading this area and creating a new communal space is considered to be 
beneficial to the nature of the listed building, subject to detail design.  Given the 
location of the lightwell, the glazed structure will not be visible from either New Kent 
Road or adjoining properties. 
 

 External Works 
 

32 The statutory list description states that Driscoll House: ‘makes a significant 
architectural statement with its free English Baroque revival elevation’ and that the 
design of the exterior is: ‘of some quality’.  Overall the exterior of Driscoll House is in a 
fair state of repair, although some work is required to the external fabric, in particular 
the metal railings.  No objection is raised subject to the approval of a Method 
Statement and Schedule of Work for the proposed external repairs. 
 

 Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and 
surrounding area  
 

33 Not a relevant consideration for this application for Listed Building Consent. 
 

 Impact of adjoining and nearby uses on occupiers and users of proposed 
development 
 

34 Not a relevant consideration for this application for Listed Building Consent. 
 

 Impact on character and setting of a listed building and/or conservation area  
 

35 Driscoll House has considerable townscape and group value with No’s 154-170 New 
Kent Road.  The setting of the listed building as seen from New Kent Road is a very 
important aspect of the significance of this heritage asset.  It is considered that the 
works proposed to the exterior of the building will enhance, rather than detract from 
the setting of this group of Grade II listed buildings. 
 

 Other matters  
 

36 Objections 
Three neighbours objected to the scheme, however their comments related mainly to 
issues regarding the overall use of the building, prospective number of users and 
neighbour amenity issues. However, this is an application for Listed Building Consent 
for works to the historic fabric and layout of the Grade II listed building.  Issues relating 
to use of a building and amenity would be considered under a planning application* for 
a change of use. Therefore the comments made by neighbours, with regard to 
planning issues, are a non material consideration for this particular Listed Building 
Consent application. 
 
*Should members be minded to grant listed building consent, the decision would not 
prejudice any future decision with regard to use, or any other matter requiring planning 
permission. 
 

37 It should also be noted that PPS 5 under ‘The Government’s Objectives’ paragraph 7, 
that: ‘the Government’s overarching aim is that the historic environment and its 

17



heritage assets should be conserved and enjoyed for the quality of life they bring to 
this and future generations. To achieve this, the Government’s objectives for planning 
for the historic environment are: to conserve England’s heritage assets in a manner 
appropriate to their significance by ensuring that: decisions are based on the nature, 
extent and level of that significance, investigated to a degree proportionate to the 
importance of the heritage asset. Wherever possible, heritage assets are put to an 
appropriate and viable use that is consistent with their conservation.’  The proposal 
seeks to continue the use of the building as a hostel, its original use, and therefore in 
listed building terms the most appropriate use. 
 

 Conclusion on planning issues  
 

38 Section 66 of the Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 contains a requirement that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, the Council 
shall have regard to the desirability of preserving features of special architectural or 
historic interest which it possesses. 
 

39 PPS5 is the Government’s guidance on Planning for the Historic Environment. It 
contains guidance for Councils in assessing applications that involve designated and 
undesignated heritage assets. A listed building, conservation area and scheduled 
ancient monument are all designated heritage assets.  PPS5 Policy HE7.1 provides in 
decision-making local planning authorities should seek to identify and assess the 
particular significance of any element of the historic environment that may be affected 
 

40 Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) Core Strategy 2011 and 
Saved Policies: 3.15 Conservation of the Historic Environment and 3.17 Listed 
Buildings; of The Southwark Plan 2007 require that proposals should preserve or 
enhance the features of special architectural or historic interest of the listed building. 
The application under consideration is comparable to that granted Listed Building 
Consent in 2006 (LBS Reg: 06-AP-1472).  It is also considered that the current 
application is more sensitive to the listed building than the previously consented 
scheme, in that the historic relationship of the corridor and bedrooms, and the plan 
form of the mezzanine floors will largely be retained.  Elsewhere the tiled communal 
rooms and features such as the bath tubs, fireplaces and drying racks will be retained. 
The overall significance (social, historical and architectural) of Driscoll House does not 
preclude change: the alterations proposed are considered necessary to secure a 
viable long-term use of the listed building.   
 

41 In summary, the proposal is generally in accordance with national (PPS 5) and local 
planning policy, The (draft) Core Strategy 2011 and The Southwark Plan 2007, as it 
represents a positive regeneration of an existing redundant listed building. It is 
considered that the proposed scheme would preserve the features of special 
architectural or historic interest of the Grade II listed building; therefore it is 
recommended to grant conditional Listed Building Consent. 
 
 
 

 Community impact statement  
 

42 In line with the Council's Community Impact Statement the impact of this application 
has been assessed as part of the application process with regard to local people in 
respect of their age, disability, faith/religion, gender, race and ethnicity and sexual 
orientation. Consultation with the community has been undertaken as part of the 
application process. 

  
 a) The impact on local people is set out above. 
  
   

 

18



Consultations 
 

43 Details of consultation and any re-consultation undertaken in respect of this 
application are set out in Appendix 1. 

  
 Consultation replies 

 
44 Details of consultation responses received are set out in Appendix 2. 

 
45 Summary of consultation responses 

No objections were received from English Heritage and the national amenity societies 
consulted.  Three neighbours commented on the scheme, their comments were 
mainly related to planning issues rather than listed building, or requested inclusion of 
works not currently proposed by the applicant.  The request for the bath tubs to remain 
in the building and not removed was noted, and a condition has been attached 
regarding this matter. 

  
 Human rights implications 

 
46 This planning application engages certain human rights under the Human Rights Act 

2008 (the HRA). The HRA prohibits unlawful interference by public bodies with 
conventions rights. The term ’engage’ simply means that human rights may be 
affected or relevant. 

  
 SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 

 
 Strategic Director of Communities, Law & Governance  

 
47 N/A 
  

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
Site history file: TP/1120-172 
 
Application file: 10-AP-3656 
 
Southwark Local Development 
Framework  and Development 
Plan Documents 

Regeneration and 
Neighbourhoods 
Department 
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SE1 2TZ 

Planning enquiries telephone:  
020 7525 5403 
Planning enquiries email: 
planning.enquiries@southwark.gov

.uk 
Case officer telephone: 
020 7525 2289 
Council website: 
www.southwark.gov.uk  

 
 

APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Consultation undertaken 
Appendix 2 Consultation responses received 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
AUDIT TRAIL  
 
Lead Officer  Gary Rice, Head of Development Management 

Report Author  Tracy Chapman 

Version  Final 

Dated 18 February 2011 

Key Decision  No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER  
Officer Title  Comments Sought  Comments included  

Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 
Governance  

No No 

Strategic Director of Regeneration and 
Neighbourhoods 

No No 

Strategic Director of Environment and 
Housing 

No No 

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 2 March 2011 

 

20



  
APPENDIX 1 

 
Consultation undertaken 

 Site notice date:  10/01/2011  
 

 Press notice date:  13/01/2011 
 

 Case officer site visit date: 17/01/2011 
 

 Neighbour consultation letters sent: 10/01/2011 
  
 Internal services consulted: 

 
 N/A 
  
 Statutory and non-statutory organisations consulted: 10/01/2011 

 
 English Heritage 

Council for British Archaeology 
The Victorian Society 
Twentieth Century Society 

  
 Neighbours and local groups consulted: 

 
 Southwark Conservation Area Advisory Group (CAAG) 

FLAT 9 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 10 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 8 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 6 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 7 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 11 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 15 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 16 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 14 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 12 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 4 7 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 5 7 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 3 7 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 1 7 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 2 7 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 6 7 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 4 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 5 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 3 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 1 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 2 8 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
DRISCOL HOUSE NEW KENT ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YT 
BASEMENT FLAT 154 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YS 
FLAT 6 10 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 4 10 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 5 10 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 4 9 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 5 9 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 3 9 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 1 9 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 2 9 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 6 9 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 2 10 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 3 10 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 1 10 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 7 9 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 8 9 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 

21



156 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YS 
158 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YS 
THIRD FLOOR FLAT 154 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YS 
160 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YS 
170 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YS 
FLAT 1 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 
168 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YS 
162 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YS 
166 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YS 
4 BAYTREE MEWS LONDON   SE17 1PU 
5 BAYTREE MEWS LONDON   SE17 1PU 
3 BAYTREE MEWS LONDON   SE17 1PU 
1 BAYTREE MEWS LONDON   SE17 1PU 
2 BAYTREE MEWS LONDON   SE17 1PU 
6 BAYTREE MEWS LONDON   SE17 1PU 
FIRST FLOOR FLAT 154 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YS 
SECOND FLOOR FLAT 154 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YS 
GROUND FLOOR FLAT 154 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YS 
7 BAYTREE MEWS LONDON   SE17 1PU 
8 BAYTREE MEWS LONDON   SE17 1PU 
5 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON   SE17 1PY 
6 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON   SE17 1PY 
4 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON   SE17 1PY 
2 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON   SE17 1PY 
3 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON   SE17 1PY 
FLAT 1 11 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 5 11 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 6 11 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 4 11 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 2 11 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 3 11 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON  SE17 1PY 
FLAT 5 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 
FLAT 6 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 
FLAT 4 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 
FLAT 2 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 
FLAT 3 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 
FLAT 7 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 
164 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YS 
1 JOHN MAURICE CLOSE LONDON   SE17 1PY 
172 NEW KENT ROAD LONDON   SE1 4YT 
FLAT 8 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 
FLAT 9 70 SEARLES ROAD LONDON  SE1 4YY 

  
 Re-consultation: 

 
 N/A 
  

22



  
APPENDIX 2 

 
Consultation responses received 

 Internal services 
 

 N/A 
  
 Statutory and non-statutory organisations 

 
 English Heritage (letter dated 31/01/2011) 

‘On the basis of the information provided we do not consider it necessary for this 
application to be notified to English Heritage’. 
 

 Council for British Archaeology   
No response at the time of writing this report 
 
The Victorian Society  
No response at the time of writing this report 
 
Twentieth Century Society  
No response at the time of writing this report 

  
 Neighbours and local groups 

 
 Southwark Conservation Area Advisory Group (CAAG) (meeting 17/01/2011) 

‘No particular issues with this scheme, which appears to be generally non-intrusive 
and in-keeping with the original use/layout of the building.  Thought that the room 
layout on upper floors was rather cramped, and questioned the positioning of wash 
hand basins.  But generally welcome this listed building returning to active use.’ 
 

 168 New Kent Road, SE1 4YS  
Email dated 13/01/2011 

• Request for confirmation as to the type of hostel presently permitted at Driscoll 
House; 

• Concern about the proposed number of users and considered that the 
proposed works would result in an intensification of use; 

• Considered that the provision of en-suite bathroom was not minor works; 
• Considered that the utility companies should be notified because the sewers 

could not cope with the increased number of users; and 
• Request for the entrance to be moved from the upper ground floor (west 

elevation) to basement level (east elevation). 
Email dated 17/01/2011 

• Having taken some planning advice, they argued that the intensification of use 
as a result of the proposed work would require a planning application.  They 
also claimed that the existing use had been abandoned. 

Email dated 19/01/2011 
• Confirmed that they had information that several people had their permanent 

home at Driscoll House, for several decades.  They therefore argued that 
Driscoll House had a mixed use class. 

Email dated 19/01/2011 
• Requested the preservation of the historic bathrooms and bathtubs in 

accordance with the previous Listed Building Consent. 
Email dated 20/01/2011 

• Request for a Southwark to insist on a planning application; 
• Considered that the restrictions of the Listed Building Consent application does 

not allow them to comment on lack of disability access or environmental 
shortcomings of Driscoll House; and 

• Considered that the alterations proposed constitute a material change and 

23



intensification of use. 
Email dated 21/01/2011 

• Objection to the removal of the historic bathrooms and sanitary ware and 
request for one complete set to be retained; 

• Objection to the unisex toilets; 
• Confirmed they would only support a disabled WC in the basement, if the 

applicant would put in a planning application for ramp at the entrance of the 
building and a wheelchair lift, so that the building complies with the disability 
laws; 

• Objection to the installation of a new lift on the basis that it is potentially 
invasive and harmful to the fabric of the listed building.  Also an objection to 
there being only one lift; and 

• A request for additional works; not included in the application under 
consideration, namely: replacement of timber windows with metal casements,  
repairs to external stonework, a new inscription of the cartouche on the exterior 
of the building, removal of the religious iconography and commemorative war 
plaques also on the exterior of the building. 

Email dated 27/01/2011 
• Requested that the following original features are retained: fixed pantry, hatch 

with sash window and linen store; 
• Objection to the lift as it would result in partial demolition of a wall in the 

laundry store; 
• Request that the laundry and linen storage are preserved as ‘heritage rooms’ 

and object to their use either as a dormitory or bedroom; 
• Request for new ‘silent’ doors to entrance, so that they open and close without 

noise; and 
• Request that the timber windows are replaced with metal casements to match 

existing and repairs are undertaken to the exterior. 
Email dated 27/01/2011 

• Comments about the blocking of the windows at basement level with plywood 
during the summer; and 

• Concern that some of the tiling in the sewing and dining rooms had been 
damaged. 

Email dated 07/02/2011 
• Concern about the introduction of dormitories to Driscoll House. 

 
 

 6 Baytree Mews, SE17 1PU (email dated 02/02/2011) 
• Reiterated the concerns raised in the email from the neighbour at 168 New 

Kent Road (email dated 27/01/2011); 
• Concerned about the change of use of rooms from single occupancy to 

dormitories and the use of the historic communal rooms as dormitories; and 
• Also a request for the Council’s view on the work that commenced on the 

building in the summer of 2010, when the previous consent had lapsed. 
 

 2 Baytree Mews, SE17 1PU (email dated 14/02/2011) 
• Concern raised about the number of dormitories and inclusion of bunk beds; 
• Concern raised about the number of occupants and noise issues; 
• Concern raised about other ‘traffic’ involved with running a building with so 

many occupants; 
• Concern raised about the reading, sewing and laundry rooms being used as 

unisex bunk bed dormitories; 
• Request for the entrance to be moved from the upper ground floor (west 

elevation) to basement level (east elevation). 
 

 

24



RECOMMENDATION 
 

This document shows the case officer's recommended decision for the application referred to below. 
This document is not a decision notice for this application. 

 
 
Applicant Ms Julie Greer 

Greer Pritchard 
Reg. Number 10-AP-3656 

Application Type Listed Building Consent    
Recommendation Grant permission Case 

Number 
TP/1120-172 

 

Draft of Decision Notice 
 

 
Listed Building CONSENT was given to carry out the following works: 
 Minor alterations and demolition to include: insertion of a new lift from basement to fourth floor level, glazing over 

of lightwell, limited demolition and remodeling of partitions, minor alterations to meet fire regulations; infilling of 
gaps to corridor walls and wall separating bedrooms following asbestos removal, minor repairs to railings, gates 
and elevations. 
 

At: DRISCOLL HOUSE, 172 NEW KENT ROAD, LONDON, SE1 4YT 
 
In accordance with application received on 17/12/2010 08:01:32     
 
and Applicant's Drawing Nos.  
Design and Access Statement, Tree Survey/Arboricultural Statement, Listed Building Heritage Statement, Schedule of 
Works,  
and drawing no’s: 051_(PL)100 Rev.A, 051_(PL) 01 Rev.A, 051_(PL)02 Rev.A, 051_(PL)03 Rev.A, 051_(PL)04 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)10 Rev.A, 051_(PL)11 Rev.A, 051_(PL)12 Rev.A, 051_(PL)13 Rev.A, 051_(PL)14 Rev.A, 051_(PL)15 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)16 Rev.A, 051_(PL)21 Rev.A, 051_(PL)22 Rev.A, 051_(PL)23 Rev.A, 051_(PL)24 Rev.A, 051_(PL)50 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)51 Rev.A, 051_(PL) 52  Rev.A. 
 
Subject to the following condition: 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the end of three years from the date of this 
permission. 
 
Reason: 
As required under Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
 
Drawing no’s: 051_(PL)100 Rev.A, 051_(PL) 01 Rev.A, 051_(PL)02 Rev.A, 051_(PL)03 Rev.A, 051_(PL)04 
Rev.A, 051_(PL)10 Rev.A, 051_(PL)11 Rev.A, 051_(PL)12 Rev.A, 051_(PL)13 Rev.A, 051_(PL)14 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)15 Rev.A, 051_(PL)16 Rev.A, 051_(PL)21 Rev.A, 051_(PL)22 Rev.A, 051_(PL)23 Rev.A, 
051_(PL)24 Rev.A, 051_(PL)50 Rev.A, 051_(PL)51 Rev.A, 051_(PL) 52  Rev.A. 
 
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

3 All new internal/external works and finishes and works of making good shall match existing original work 
adjacent in respect of materials used, detailed execution and finished appearance, except where indicated 
otherwise on the drawings hereby approved or as required by any condition(s) attached to this consent.    
 
Reason: 
In order to ensure that the design and details are in the interest of the special architectural or historic qualities 
of the listed building in accordance with PPS5, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) 
Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.15 Conservation of the Historic Environment; 3.16 Conservation 
Areas; 3.17 Listed Buildings; of The Southwark Plan 2007. 
 

4 Precautions shall be taken to secure and protect the existing historic features (staircase balustrade, drying 
racks, glazed tiles, kitchen servery, bath tubs, decorative courtyard railings and fireplaces) against accidental 
damage during building works. Before commencing the works the applicant must submit, and have approved 
by this Local Planning Authority in writing, drawn details (1:5/10) of the protection works; the development 
shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with any such approval given. The bath tubs, decorative 
railings and fireplaces should remain insitu and not removed from the building. 

25



 
Reason: 
In order to ensure that the proposed works are in the interest of the special architectural or historic qualities of 
the listed building in accordance with PPS5, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) Core 
Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.15 Conservation of the Historic Environment; 3.16 Conservation Areas; 
3.17 Listed Buildings; of The Southwark Plan 2007. 
 
 

5 The following samples shall be made available on site for inspection by the Local Planning Authority, and 
approval in writing; the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with any such 
approval given. 
i) all types of glazed tiles for repairs 
ii) Mouchel-Hennebique system concrete repairs 
iii) pointing of brickwork 
iv) brick for repairs 
v) stone for repairs 
 
Reason: 
In order to ensure that the design and details are in the interest of the special architectural or historic qualities 
of the listed building in accordance with PPS5, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) 
Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.15 Conservation of the Historic Environment; 3.16 Conservation 
Areas; 3.17 Listed Buildings; of The Southwark Plan 2007. 
 
 

6 No meter boxes, flues, vents or pipes [other than rainwater pipes] or other appurtenances not shown on the 
approved drawings shall be fixed or installed on the elevations of the listed building. 
 
Reason 
To ensure such works do not detract from the appearance of the listed building in accordance with PPS5, 
Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies 3.12 
Quality in Design, 3.13 Urban Design and 3.17 'Listed Buildings' of The Southwark Plan 2007. 
 
 

7 Prior to commencement of works, the applicant shall submit a Schedule of Condition of existing metal 
windows/ doors and Schedule of Works for their repair to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.  
All original metal doors, windows, are to be retained, repaired and refurbished, unless otherwise approved in 
writing by this Local Planning Authority. The proposed relocation of the metal doors to be agreed in writing 
with this Local Planning Authority.  The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with any such approval given. 
 
Reason: 
In order to ensure that the proposed works are in the interest of the special architectural or historic qualities of 
the listed building in accordance with PPS5, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) Core 
Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.15 Conservation of the Historic Environment;  3.17 Listed Buildings; of 
The Southwark Plan 2007. 
 
 

8 Shop drawings (scale 1:2, 1:5 ) for all new fenestration and doors shall be submitted to this Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing; the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with 
any such approval given. 
 
Reason: 
In order to ensure that the design and details are in the interest of the special architectural or historic qualities 
of the listed building in accordance with PPS5, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) 
Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.15 Conservation of the Historic Environment; 3.17 Listed Buildings; 
of The Southwark Plan 2007 
 

9 Prior to commencement of works, a Schedule of Works and detailed drawings (at a scale of 1:50) of the 
proposed mechanical and electrical installation works in the followings areas: central staircase, reception, 
dining hall, sewing room, reading room and lounge, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing; the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with any such 
approval given. 
 
Reason: 
In order to ensure that the proposed works are in the interest of the special architectural or historic qualities of 
the listed building in accordance with PPS5, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) Core 
Strategy 2011 and Saved Policy 3.17 Listed Buildings; of The Southwark Plan 2007 

26



 
10 Detailed drawings (scale 1:5 and 1:10) of the glazed roof; to include typical details of the junction between roof 

and historic fabric, shall be submitted to this Local Planning Authority and approved in writing; the 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with any such approval given. 
 
Reason: 
In order to ensure that the design and details are in the interest of the special architectural or historic qualities 
of the listed building in accordance with PPS5, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) 
Core Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.15 Conservation of the Historic Environment; 3.17 Listed Buildings; 
of The Southwark Plan 2007. 
 
 

11 Prior to commencement of works to form the openings in the existing structure for the provision of the new lift, 
a Method Statement(s) and Schedule of Works shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval 
in writing; the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with any such approval 
given. 
 
Reason: 
In order to ensure that the proposed works are in the interest of the special architectural or historic qualities of 
the listed building in accordance with PPS5, Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of The (Draft) Core 
Strategy 2011 and Saved Policies: 3.15 Conservation of the Historic Environment; 3.17 Listed Buildings; of 
The Southwark Plan 2007. 
 
 

 Reasons for granting Listed Building Consent. 
 
This Listed Building Consent application was considered with regard to various policies including, but not 
exclusively: 
 
a] Strategic Policy 12 - Design and Conservation of the (draft) Core Strategy 2011 and saved policies of 
the Southwark Plan [July 2007]: 3.15 (Conservation and the Historic Environment) requires that  
 development should preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the area; and 3.17 (Listed 
Buildings) seeks to preserve the building and its features of special architectural or historic interest. 
 
b] Policies 4B.11 London's built heritage and 4B.12 Heritage conservation of the London Plan [2008]. 
 
c]    Planning Policy Guidance Notes [PPS 5 Planning for the Historic Environment] . 
 
Particular regard was had to the impact of proposed development on the historic fabric of the grade II listed 
buildings, that would result from the proposed development. It was considered that there is a return to a viable 
and beneficial use and that proposed works preserve the historic fabric and special interest of the heritage 
asset.  It was therefore considered appropriate to grant listed building consent having regard to the policies 
considered and other material planning considerations. 
 

 
 
 
    
 

27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank. 



MEMBERS & EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010-2011 
WALWORTH COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

Note: Original held by Constitutional Team (Community Councils) 
(Tel: 020 7525 7385) 

 
 Copies  Copies 

To all members of the community council    
Councillor Martin Seaton (Chair)                                      1 Geoffrey Banister 1 
Councillor Neil Coyle (Vice-Chair)                                     1 Ground Floor  
Councillor Catherine Bowman                                          1 160 Tooley Street  
Councillor Patrick Diamond                                              1   
Councillor Dan Garfield                                                     1   
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE                                       1   
Councillor Darren Merrill                                                   1   
Councillor Abdul Mohammed                                            1 Borough Commander 1 
Councillor Helen Morrissey                                               1 Southwark Police   
 
 

 Station 
323 Borough High Street 

 

Other Members  London SE1 1JL  
Councillor Lisa Rajan 1   
  Trade Unions  
  UNISON Southwark Branch 1 
Libraries 6 Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX 1 
Local Studies Library  1 TGWU/ACTS       1 
  Tony O’Brien, UCATT 1 
Press    
Southwark News 1 Housing Offices  
South London Press 1 Walworth Area Housing Office                             1 
    
  One Stop Shop Walworth 1 
Members of Parliament  151 Walworth Road  
Harriet Harman M.P.                                               1 London, SE17 1 RY  
Simon Hughes M.P.                                              1   
    

Constitutional Officer (Community Councils) 
(at  CLG, Tooley Street – Second Floor – Hub 4) 
 

15 TOTAL 46 

Vikki Lewis  (Tooley St - Fifth Floor, Hub 2) 
 

1   

Nicky Bradbury (Tooley St - Second Floor, Hub 
2) 

1   

 
 
  

 

Agenda Annex
28


	Agenda
	
	
	5 Minutes
	6 Development Control Items
	schedule of applications

	6.1 Driscoll House, 172 New Kent Road, London, SE1 4YT
	Driscoll House, 172 New Kent Road, London, SE1 4YT - Report
	Driscoll House, 172 New Kent Road, London, SE1 4YT - Recommendation

	
	

